ALLIANCE DEFENDING

FREEDOM

FOR FAITH. FOR JUSTICE

March 10, 2025

Michael G. Seidel

Section Chief, Record/Information Dissemination Section
Federal Bureau of Investigation

935 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW

Washington, D.C. 20535-0001

Dear Mr. Seidel,

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552, I respectfully
seek records related to the Federal Bureau of Investigation’s (“FBI”) collaboration
with technology companies to moderate online content. Accordingly, I request:

1. All communications between FBI personnel and any officers or employees of
Meta, Facebook, Instagram, Alphabet, Google, YouTube, Snap, Twitter, X
Corp., Reddit, or Wikipedia containing any of the following terms:

“Co-Insights”
“codebook”
“cognitive infrastructure”
“CourseCorrect”
“critical infrastructure”
“disinformation”
“EI-ISAC”
“election integrity”
“election interference”
“Facebook”
“Google”
“hate speech”

. “Instagram”
“Jira”
“lab leak”
“malinformation”
“MDM”
“misinformation”
“MS-ISAC”
“natural language processing”
“Reddit”
“reporting portal”
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w. “Search Lit”
X. “Snapchat”
y. “social media”
z. “teleport!”
aa.“TikTok”

bb. “Twitter”

cc. “YouTube”

dd.“vaccine”
ee. “WiseDex”

Please limit all searches in response to this request from January 1, 2020,
through January 1, 2025. Please conduct all searches in a manner that is case-
insensitive. That is, records should be retrieved regardless of whether the search
terms appear in uppercase, lowercase, or a combination of both. “I” denotes a root
expander for the purposes of this request. Even if a search term does not contain the
“I” root expander, please include variations of the search terms that contain
additional letters at the end, such as plural forms or common suffix variations.

The term “document” means any written, recorded, or graphic matter of any
nature whatsoever, regardless of how recorded, and whether original or copy,
including, but not limited to, the following: memorandums, reports, manuals,
financial reports, records, letters, emails, MMS or SMS text messages, contracts,
transcripts, messages, and investigations. By definition, a “communication,” as that
term is defined herein, is also a “document” if the means of communication is any
written, recorded, or graphic matter of any sort whatsoever, regardless of how
recorded.

The term “communication” means any transmitted information in any format
or medium, whether oral, electronic, by document, or otherwise, including, but not
limited to the following: telephone, facsimile, email, text message, MMS or SMS
message, WhatsApp, Signal, regular mail, or social media direct message.
“Communications between” means any communication involving the related
parties, regardless of whether other persons were involved in the communication,
and includes, but is not limited to, communications where one party is cc’d or bec’d,
both parties are cc’d or bec’d, or some combination thereof.

This request for records includes any attachments to those records or other
materials enclosed with those records when they were previously transmitted. To
the extent an email is responsive to any request, that request also includes all prior
messages sent or received in that email chain, as well as any attachments to the
email.
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In the interest of expediency and to minimize the research and/or duplication
burden on your staff, please send records electronically if possible. If this is not
possible, please notify me before sending to the mailing address listed below. If
access to this request will take longer than twenty business days, please let me
know when I might receive records or be able to inspect the requested records.

If any portion of this request is denied for any reason, please provide written
notice of the records or portions of records that are being withheld and cite each
specific exemption to the Freedom of Information Act on which the agency relies.
Moreover, to the extent that responsive records may be withheld in part, please
produce all reasonably segregable portions of those records. Additionally, please
provide all responsive documents even if they are redacted in full.

Fee Waiver Request

I request a waiver of all applicable fees associated with this request under 5
U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(@111). This request is solely for non-commercial purposes. As a
501(c)(3) nonprofit, Alliance Defending Freedom (“ADF”) does not have a
commercial purpose, and the release of information requested is not in ADF’s
commercial interest. ADF’s mission is to protect religious freedom, free speech,
marriage and family, parental rights, and the sanctity of life through pro bono legal
advocacy.

The disclosure of the requested information is in the public interest and is
likely to contribute significantly to public understanding of government operations
and activities. Specifically, disclosure is in the public interest because the requested
information relates to the government’s cooperation with private technology
companies to moderate online content, which has been covered extensively in
national media. A report from a committee in the House of Representatives has also
drawn attention to these issues.! ADF plans to use the requested information for
analysis, evaluation, and public education, and it plans to disclose such information
through social media, broadcast media, press releases, and other media.

If you deny this request for a fee waiver, please advise me in advance of the
estimated charges if they are to exceed $100. Please send me a detailed and
itemized explanation of those charges.

1 Committee on the Judiciary and the Select Subcommittee on the Weaponization of
the Federal Government, The Censorship-Industrial Complex: How Top Biden
White House Officials Coerced Big Tech to Censor Americans, True Information, and
Critics of the Biden Administration (2024), https://bit.ly/4al.oO7Z.
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If you have any questions or need clarification of this request, please contact
me at mmartin@adflegal.org.

Respectfully Submitted,

s/Mercer Martin
Mercer Martin
Legal Counsel
Alliance Defending Freedom
15100 N. 90th St.
Scottsdale, AZ 85260




